
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Michael Cunliffe- Policy and Overview & Scrutiny Officer,  
Email:  michael.cunliffe@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Tuesday, 10 December 2019 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Wednesday, 18 December 2019 at 3.30 pm, 
QE Room, Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Jean Battle, Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, Terry Hurn, Patrick McGinley, Tim O'Kane 
and Paddy Short 
 
Cooptees: Paul Barton, Bernard Dawson, Ian Ormerod and Gareth Molineux 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 

2.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To submit the minutes of the meeting of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on the 31st October 2019 for approval as a correct record. 
 
Recommended  - That the minutes be received and approved as a  

correct record. 
 

3.   Enforcement around Fly Tipping, Littering and Graffiti in Hyndburn  (Pages 7 - 24) 
 
To inform Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the powers and action taken 
by the Council in relation to fly tipping, littering and graffiti across the Borough. 
 
The report focuses on enforcement taken by the Council in relation to fly tipping, littering 
and graffiti, and adds context and builds on a previous report to the Committee in 
November 2018 on the same matter, which is attached for reference and information at 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Appendix A. 
 
Recommended - The Committee notes and considers the report and  

makes comments. 
 

4.   Hyndburn Arts Trust  (Pages 25 - 40) 
 
To allow the committee to review its conditions to grant a payment of £30,000 to 
Hyndburn Arts Ltd based over three financial instalments.  
 
Recommended  - That Cabinet be requested to grant the final £10,000 (Tranche 

3) to be released subject to the resolutions of the Committee 
being met which were originally set at the 5th September 2019 
meeting of the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 
Tranche 2 was authorised after the 31st October 2019 meeting 
and Tranche 3 involved the following conditions:- 

(a) To have met all the conditions set out in Tranche 2 
and submit evidence of this to O&S over a 3 
month period to highlight the changes, and:- 

(b) To provide the forecast 2020/21 using the new 
format from the financial review. 

 

 
 



 

 
1 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Thursday, 31st October, 2019 

 
Present:  Councillor Noordad Aziz (in the Chair),  

Councillors Jean Battle (Vice Chair), Stephen Button, Andrew Clegg, 
Patrick McGinley, Tim O'Kane and Sara Britcliffe 
 
Co-optees:  Paul Barton, Ian Ormerod and Bernard Dawson 
 

In Attendance:  

  

Apologies: Councillors Terry Hurn and Paddy Short 
 

 
1 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Hurn and Councillor Short. 
 
Councillor Britcliffe acted as substitute representative for Councillor Hurn. 
 
The Chair reported that the Labour Members of the Committee had a personal interest in 
item 4 – Hyndburn Arts Trust, due to Gayle Knight being a member of the Labour Party. 
 

2 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on the 5th September 
2019 were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

3 Review of New Recycling Scheme and Litter/ Dog Fouling Enforcement Scheme 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Environmental Services presented a report on the 
Council’s new recycling scheme and town centre litter and dog fouling enforcement.  He 
reported that recycling rates had increased slightly since the introduction of the new 
procedures.  He informed the Committee of the awards that Hyndburn had won reflecting 
the success of the schemes.   
 
The Executive Director, Environment explained the difference in the way that figures were 
recorded for waste reduction and recycling and Members were referred to appendix one 
which showed comparison figures of the East Lancashire local authorities for residual and 
recycling waste.    
 
Councillor Aziz requested that the Executive Director, Environment circulated Members of 
the Committee a copy of data showing how Hyndburn compared with other local authorities 
across the country.  The Executive Director, Environment indicated that he would look into if 
this was possible. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
 

The Executive Director, Environment and the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Environmental 
Services responded to a number of questions previously submitted by Members as well as 
further questions at the meeting on the following issues: 
 

 Categories of fixed penalty notices for cigarette butts, general litter and dog fouling. 

 Commission and monthly targets for Enforcement Officers. 

 Patrolling areas or targeting hotspot areas? 

 Training standards for Enforcement Officers. 

 The age range of the 4% under 20 years old. 

 Body cam footage? 

 The cost effectiveness of contracting Enforcement Officers rather than an in-house 
team.  

 An increase in Fixed Penalty Notices compared with last year. 

 Concern that funds were being generated by fines rather than efforts being made to 
educate and prevention. 

 
A summary of the main points were: 
 

- Littering with cigarette butts, littering and dog fouling were common problems across 
all authorities and required more than one approach to reduce the problems.    

- The Executive Director, Environment and the Cabinet Portfolio Holder for 
Environmental Services indicated that they would look into reports that the 
Enforcement Officers had targets for raising funds through fines but pointed out that 
they were not aware that this was happening.   

- The Executive Director, Environment indicated that the renewal of the contract 
would give consideration to the current success of the scheme.  

- The Enforcement Company owned the footage recorded on video cameras and that 
it was usual to video only when prosecuting a person. 

- Areas had been identified as hotspots and Enforcement Officers had been directed 
to patrol these areas.   

- The Council had done all it could to prevent dog fouling including providing free dog 
bags and the provision of additional dog bins but had accepted that issuing fines 
was also a deterrent. 

- The scheme, so far, had significantly reduced the amount of littering in the borough. 
- There was currently no cost to the Council for this service. 
- Those categorised as being fined under the age of 20 years would be around 18-19 

year olds. 
 
Resolved (1) That the report be noted; and  
 
 (2) That Members’ comments, as outlined above, be 

forwarded onto the Executive Director, Environment.   
 

4 Hyndburn Arts Trust 
 
The Labour Members of the Committee declared personal interests in Hyndburn Arts Trust, 
due to Gayle Knight being a member of the Labour Party. 
 
The Chair of Hyndburn Arts Limited updated the Committee on the financial situation with 
Hyndburn Arts Trust.  She reported that a meeting had been held with the Executive 
Director, Finance in relation to the financial management of the Company and that the 
accounts were due to be signed off at the next Board Meeting which was scheduled to take 
place soon.  She indicated that since her attendance at the last Committee they had 
complied with all of the recommendations made and referred to a number objectives that 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
 

had been resolved including staffing issues and the invoicing of schools for pantomime 
performances.  She also explained that extra funding raising events had taken place.   
 
Councillor Aziz requested an explanation for uncategorised income.   
 
The Chair of Hyndburn Arts Limited referred to problems with how this income had been 
recorded but pointed out that this had now been resolved and the accounts updated.     
 
Councillor Aziz reported that Hyndburn Arts Trust had taken the recommendations on board 
and that the Committee appreciated the impact of the organisation on the Oswaldtwistle 
Community.   
 
The Chair of Hyndburn Arts Limited proposed that all new Councillors and Senior Officers 
visited all local buildings and were given a tour to raise awareness of their significance in 
the community.   
 
Members expressed gratitude at the significant progress made by the Hyndburn Arts Trust. 
 
Resolved - That the Committee recommend that Cabinet grant the 

release of the second tranche of funding, of £10,000, 
subject to the conditions being met as set at the 
Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 2nd 
September 2019. 

 
5 Review of Agency Staff Costs 

 
The Chair reported on the research undertaken in relation to agency staff costs for 
Hyndburn Borough Council.  He reported that a meeting had been scheduled with 
Department Heads to discuss this issue and propose different ways of doing things.  He 
invited Members to participate in the process by forwarding on their comments to the Chair 
and Overview and Scrutiny Officer. 
 
Resolved - That Members’ comments on the use of agency staff 

and its cost are forwarded onto the Chair and Overview 
and Scrutiny Officer. 

 
6 Hyndburn Green Review- Overview & Scrutiny Panel Report 

 
The Co-Chair of the Hyndburn Green Review (Councillor Stephen Button) reported on the 
completion of the Green Review – Overview and Scrutiny Panel and pointed out that 
Members of the Panel had been pleased with the outcomes of the meetings.   
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer referred Members to the appendix showing the 
comments submitted by Panel Members before approval of the final report, as attached to 
the agenda.  He advised that the matter would continue to be looked at by a new 
Committee formed to progress the issues raised by the Panel.    
 
Councillor Aziz referred to a report released by the Friends of the Earth in which Hyndburn 
was in the bottom twenty but suggested that this Review would help to address some of 
these issues.   
 
Members referred to the recommendations relating to woodland coverage and the 
availability of financial incentives.  Councillor Britcliffe reported that Prospects were looking 
at three Nature Reserves in Oswaldtwistle with the aim to plant more trees.   
 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
 

It was reported that the Green Review report would be submitted to Cabinet for 
consideration.   
 
Resolved (1) That the report be noted and approved by the 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee; and  
 
 (2) That the summary and recommendations of the Scrutiny 

Panel be reported to the next meeting of Cabinet. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Signed:…………………………………………… 

 
Date: …………….………………………………………… 

 
Chair of the meeting 

At which the minutes were confirmed 
 

 

Page 6



 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 18th December 2019 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Loraine Cox, Housing & Regeneration 

REPORT AUTHOR: Javier Garcia – Interim Environmental Protection 
Manager 

TITLE OF REPORT: Enforcement around Fly Tipping, Littering and Graffiti in 
Hyndburn 

EXEMPT REPORT 
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
 
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the powers and action taken 

by the Council in relation to fly tipping, littering and graffiti across the Borough.  The report 
focuses on enforcement taken by the Council and builds on a previous report to the 
Committee in November 2018 on the same matter, which is attached for reference and 
information at Appendix A. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 The Committee notes and considers the report and makes comments. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee previously considered a report on fly 

tipping, littering and graffiti in November 2018 which is attached for information.  This 
report builds on the content of that report and specifically provides information on how the 
Council deals with fly tipping, littering and graffiti including an examination of the powers 
available to the Council and the subsequent enforcement action the Council takes.   

 
3.2 Detrimental to Amenity or Blighted Sites 
 
 

The Council takes action against matters that are considered to be detrimental to the 
safety, health or welfare of its communities.  Blighted sites, as we often summarise this 
area take many forms and we record requests for service under the following categories: 

 

 Accumulations of Refuse – For accumulations on land or commercial premises 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3.



 

 Side Waste – For waste put out for collection at the side of waste bins 

 Fly Tipping – When a third-party deposits rubbish on private land 

 Dirty Back Yard (Unoccupied) – Accumulations in occupied premises (front and back 
yards). 

 Dirty Back Yard (Occupied) – Accumulations in empty properties residential and 
commercial 

 Land/Buildings Detrimental to Amenity of the Community – Where an occupied 
building including yards impacts negatively on the visual amenity of the community 

 Empty Dwellings detrimental to the Amenity of the Community – Where an unoccupied 
building including yards impacts negatively on the visual amenity of the community. 
This includes empty dwellings open to access. 

 Illegal Encampments – The removal of caravans from sites with no permission 
 

The number of requests for service for each category of blighted site is provided in 
Appendix B (Table 1) for the preceding 3 years and this year to date.  The Committee 
should note that side waste is dealt with by the Waste Services Department and therefore 
excludes most side waste complaints.   
 
The Committee should also note that the number of fly tipping cases appears low. This is 
misleading because where fly tipping occurs alongside another nuisance it is often 
categorised as “Land/Buildings Detrimental to Amenity of the Community”.  

 
3.3 Procedures for restoring Blighted Sites 
 

On receipt of a Service Request for a blighted site an Officer will investigate and confirm if 
action is required. The target for this is 5 working days. 

 
A letter is sent to the person responsible for the blight, in many cases this is a statutory 
requirement. Ordinarily 7 days will be allowed for a response.  

 
Failure to obtain a response will in most cases result in a formal notice served for removal 
of the offending accumulations. 

 
Failure to restore the site can result in the following; 

 

 Fixed Penalty Notice 

 Prosecution for an Offence 

 Works carried out in default and the costs  

 Compulsory purchase orders 
 

Details of action taken by the Council is summarised Appendix B (Table 2). 
 
3.4  Statutory Powers currently used and available to Hyndburn BC. 
 

The most commonly used statutory procedures are set out below. 
 

Section 80 Environmental Protection Act 1990 
 

Any accumulation or deposit which is prejudicial to health or a nuisance is a statutory 
nuisance and action can be taken by serving an Abatement Notice which requires the 

Page 8



 

nuisance to be abated and can prevent its recurrence. The notice can be served on the 
owner, occupier or person by whose act default or sufferance the nuisance arises. 

 
This is commonly used for deposits of a putrescible nature which can rot leading to foul 
smells, flies and other insect infestations. 

 
Section 215 Town and Country Planning Act 1990  

 
Where the amenity of a part of their area is adversely affected by the condition of land in 
their area, they Council may serve on the owner and occupier of the land a notice under 
this section. 

 
This is used for the clearing of yards where it is unsightly. It is also used for buildings 
which have become unsightly due to poor decorative or other disrepair. 
 
Section 4 Prevention of Damage by Pests Act 

 
If it appears that steps should be taken for the destruction of rats or mice on land or for 
keeping land free from rats and mice a notice may be served on the owner or occupier of 
the land which requires them to take reasonable action to free the land of rats or mice or 
to prevent the infestation of rats or mice.  

 
This is used for the removal of accumulations of inert materials such as builder’s rubble or 
for heavy undergrowth. There would normally be a presence of rodents for this power to 
be used although it may be used if it can be demonstrated that the accumulations are 
potential harbourage for rodents. 

 
 

Section 59 Building Act 1984 
 

Where there is not satisfactory provision made for drainage, which includes gutters and 
rainwater pipes a notice requiring the owner of the building to make satisfactory provision 
for the drainage of the building can be served.  

 
This is used where buildings, including some empty dwellings, have such unsatisfactory 
drainage that this causes damp to both the exterior and interior of the building. The 
drainage of a building also often affects the neighbouring premises  

 
Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 Part 4 

 
On investigation the conditions found at some premises are not of sufficient severity or 
consequence to take action under one of the above powers. If satisfied on reasonable 
grounds that the conduct of an individual is having a detrimental effect, of a persistent or 
continuing nature, on the quality of life of those in the locality, and the conduct is 
unreasonable the Council may issue a community protection notice (CPN).  

 
This is commonly used for complaints of accumulations of dog faeces in rear yards or low 
levels of accumulations of refuse which do not fit the criteria for one of the actions above. 

 
Section 29 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

 

Page 9



 

Where an empty building is open to access to the public there are powers to secure the 
building after 48 hours’ notice to the owner. 

 
3.5  Resources 
 

There are two full time dedicated Environmental Standards Officers who deal with 
environmental blight.  . There is also an Empty Property Officer who deals with these 
issues in empty homes and two Environmental Health Officers who occasionally take 
such action when dealing with an occupied dwelling that include blight.  The 
Environmental Protection Manager manages this area alongside other related 
environmental issues such as private rented housing, selective landlord licensing and 
pollution control. 

 
3.6  Clarification of Duties 
 

The task of restoring blighted sites and removal of graffiti is shared between 
Environmental Standards and Waste Services, with Waste Services concentrating on side 
waste and initial investigation of fly tipping. With regards to flying tipping in particular this 
is dealt with by the Environmental Protection team within the Regeneration and Housing 
Service. 

 
3.7 Other Matters to Note 

 
Environment Agency 
 
Fly-tipping of waste is illegal and constitutes a serious offence for which a person can be 
prosecuted. There are several pieces of legislation relating to fly-tipping in addition to the 
CNEA 2005. The main legislation is the Environmental Protection Act (EPA) 1990, ss.33, 
34 and 59. The Control of Pollution (Amendment) Act 1989 sets out the need for waste 
carriers to register with the Environment Agency and gives the Agency and authorised 
officers of a Waste Collection Authority power to seize vehicles used for illegal waste-
related activities. 
 

 “Flycapture” is a system managed by the Environment Agency, and the data it provides is 
 allowing government and the authorities to better understand the problem, identify trends 
 and measure the success of policies 
 
 In summary, local authorities are responsible for dealing with most types of small-scale 
 fly-tipping. 
 
 The Environment Agency deals with bigger incidents generally those involving more than 
 a tipper load of waste, incidents involving organised crime and certain hazardous wastes 
 which have a greater potential to damage the environment. 

 

 The Environment Agency will normally investigate and take appropriate enforcement 
 action  against: 
 • illegal waste activities such as illegal transfer stations and unpermitted landfill sites 
 • large-scale fly-tipping i.e. tipping of more than a lorry load  
 • illegal dumping of hazardous waste in drums or other containers 7 litres or greater 

Page 10



 

 • unregistered waste carriers and brokers including those identified through national and 
 local stop exercises 
 • registered waste carriers and brokers that commit a relevant offence (e.g. those 
 specified in the Control of Pollution (Amendment) Act 1989 and in the Waste 
 Management Licensing Regulations 1994. 
 
 The Agency will also normally investigate, arrange for the removal of and  take
 appropriate enforcement action with regard to: 
 
 • waste (including animal carcasses or remains) dumped in Controlled Waters that is 
 giving rise to an actual or an imminent threat of water pollution 
 • waste (including animal carcasses or remains) that is impeding the flow of water such as 
 to give rise to an actual or imminent threat of a significant flood risk in a Main River 
 • any waste described in 3.7 that is dumped in a way that is giving rise to an imminent 
 threat to human health or of serious harm to the environment. 

 
 Japanese Knot Weed 

 
Japanese Knot Weed is an increasing problem and it can aggressively propagate from 
neighboring land. Since 2016 the Anti-social Behavior, Crime and Policing Act 2014 Part 
4b has been used to require the control of the weed. The unreasonable conduct is in not 
treating the plant and allowing it to spread to neighboring land. There may be other 
powers that can be used to control the spread of Japanese Knotweed such as Sec 215 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and possibly statutory nuisance powers Sec 80 
Environmental Protection Act 1990. Satisfactory results have been obtained by using this 
power and it is proposed to continue doing so. 
 
Graffiti 

 
Graffiti does not only disfigure Council property, items such as telephone boxes, bus 
shelters and electricity boxes which are the property of private companies and 
householders receive similar treatment. 

 
The responsibility of removing graffiti from private property lies with the owner of the 
property and it is not always possible to achieve a quick removal of the defacement when 
owners of property reside outside the borough. 

 
In response  to  this  form  of  problem  the  Council  can  issue  Graffiti  Removal Notices  
under  Section  48  of  the  Anti-social  Behaviour  Act  2003  to  request removal of the 
defacement within 28 days. 

 
Where the graffiti is offensive, failure to respond to a Graffiti Removal Notice allows an 
authorised officer of the local authority to enter the land to remove the defacement and 
recover reasonable expenditure incurred in exercising this power. The graffiti should be 
removed as quickly as possible and the probation service has provided staff on a one 
day a week basis to keep this problem under control. 

 
Private owners have availed themselves of this service at no cost when permission has 
been given to remove the defacement. This is now needed to be put on a more formal 
footing to deal with the problem areas where there is no response from the owners. 

Page 11



 

 
Graffiti Legal Powers 
• Criminal Damage Act 1971 
• Graffiti Removal Notices under Section 48 of the Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003 
• Section 71 of the Race Relations Act 1976 
• Section 49A of the disability Discrimination and Section 76A of the Sex Discrimination 
Act 1975. 
 
Definition of Anti-Social Behavior 

 
The definition of what might constitute “unreasonable behaviour which will have a 
detrimental effect on the quality of life” is open to interpretation and difficulties have been 
encountered as to where this boundary lies. Criteria are being adopted to ensure 
consistency and uniformity. These criteria are open to challenge and complaints have 
been received for both taking action to require the removal of dog faeces and for not 
taking action in a slightly lesser case.  
 
We have received complaints of non-aggressive weeds such as horse tail or ivy growing 
from neighbouring premises. This illustrates the difficulty in this power as they are wide 
ranging and could be seen as unnecessarily interfering with residents’ life and could also 
result in an increase in requests for service of un-neighbourly behaviour not all of which 
can be seen to be unreasonable or having a detrimental effect on people’s lives.  
 
The powers to deal with this are discretionary and therefore agreed criteria are required to 
set the level at which these powers are used. 
 

4.0  Case Studies 
 
Case Study A 
 
Incident Location      Old Paper Mill, Rishton 
 
This is an ongoing challenging case, involving severe fly-tipping, anti-social behavior and 
graffiti.  
 
Following the closure of the Paper mill in 1995, the building remained vacant until 2002, 
when the building was purchased for development. Consequently, plans for development 
were not obtained for approximately 10 years. During this period there were numerous 
cases of severe fly tipping, ASB fires and trespass. 
 
Adjacent to the paper mill was a fishing lodge, which generated approximately 10k in 
profits for the owners, whilst the empty mill lay dormant. 
 
In 2014, the water at the fishing lodge became polluted, resulting in the fishing lodge 
ending its lease.  
 
As a consequence, the land lay derelict, attracting further ASB nuisance, fly-tipping and 
trespassing.  
 

Page 12



 

Various actions were taken by Hyndburn Borough Council to prevent further issues as 
described above: 
 

 S29 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 

This allows the local authority to undertake works in connection with the building for the 
purpose of preventing unauthorised entry to it, or, as the case may be, for the purpose of 
preventing it becoming a danger to public health. 

 Untidy Land Notices (Section 215 of the Town and Country Planning Act) 
 

Under this legislation the council can serve an ‘amenity’ notice on the owner of any land 

or building which is in an unreasonably untidy condition and we consider has an adverse 

effect on the amenity of the area. This is done under section 215 of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 (as amended). 

This notice is used to maintain and improve the quality of the environment, to assist in 

tackling dereliction and retaining land in a productive use as well as contribute to the 

regeneration of an area and respond positively to public concerns. 

Many of the problems of untidy land and buildings are relatively easy to put right for 

example: 

1. fallen fences, 

2. dilapidated walls / broken windows / graffiti, 

3. land with fly tipping, industrial or demolition waste, 

4. builders rubble, 

5. dumped sofas/furniture, 

6. abandoned vehicles, 

7. dumped tyres or 

8. Overgrown gardens. 

 

 Section 78 of the Building Act 1984 

The Council can take such actions, if it appears that a building or structure is dangerous 

and immediate action should be taken to remove the danger, the local authority may take 

such steps as are necessary 

 

 Section 79 of the Building Act 1984  

Ruinous and dilapidated buildings and neglected sites 

Page 13



 

 

 Misuse of Drugs Act 1971 s 77 for dangerous drugs use 

 

 Section 80 Environmental Protection Act  

Following appropriate actions taken under all of the above legislation by Hyndburn BC, 
the owner’s response was to carry out minor repairs and made minor changes to comply 
with the notices served, however, it was deemed by the authority that sufficient action had 
not been taken by the owners.  
 
In light of the owner’s ability to frustrate the Council, in 2016, Hyndburn used new powers 
under the Anti-Social Behaviour and Policing Act 2014, and served a legal notice. 
 
Under this notice, it was required that the owners; 
 
1. Remove all fly-tipping 

2. Erect and maintain a suitable fence 

3. Adequately secure the premises 

4. Cut back all overhanging vegetation 

5. Subject to weekly site inspections, to ensure compliance. 

 
In this case, the owners did not comply with the notice served under the above act, 
rendering the case potentially suitable for prosecution.  The Council subsequently took 
external legal advice to bring the matter to Court. 
 
Consequently, it was deemed that the Council needed to have sufficient evidence to 
satisfy itself, that the behaviour in question was genuinely having a detrimental effect on 
others’ quality of life, in terms of the nuisance or harm that is being caused to others. 

 
It was suggested that the behaviour had not had a detrimental effect on the quality of life 
of those in the locality; in other words there was no detrimental effect on any community 
due to the location of the site and its distance from residential dwellings. 
 
Clearly this was a learning lesson for the Council when using the Anti-Social Behaviour 
and Policing Act 2014.  In the circumstances the Council will continue to use the most 
appropriate power, under section 215 and 216 TCPA 1990 which is the Council’s power to 
require proper maintenance of the land.  Whilst this does have an immediate effect of 
removing the fly tipping, it doesn’t prevent it from happening again. 
 
This case is still currently under review. 
 
Case Study B Fly tipping 
 
Incident Location:               Land adjoining The New Empire Bingo 

                                                              & Social Club                      
                                                             Blackburn Road, Accrington, BB5 0AE  
                                                         
 

Page 14



 

An investigation was conducted into a fly tipping allegation at the above address. A 
Community protection notice was issued on the land owner, who in turn did not comply 
with the notice.    

 
On the 5th September 2018 the owner failed to comply with the requirement imposed by a 
Notice duly issued by Hyndburn Borough Council on the 31st October 2017, in accordance 
with section 43 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, which was an 
ongoing requirement, to ensure that the car parking/yard area was kept clear of rubbish 
and all other waste materials, contrary to section 48 (1) of the Anti-Social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 2014. 
 
In this case the officer made recommendations for prosecution due to the non-compliance 
of the statutory notice. The prosecution was successful. The offender was fined a total of 
£734.00, a fine of £484 and £250 costs. 
 
 
Case Study C - Fly tipping 
 
Incident Location:                 Adjoining land to 49 Clement Street, Accrington, BB5 2JG 

                                                         
Description of Incident:    
 
On 20th December 2016 a visit was made to 49 Clement Street, Accrington, following a 
complaint from a member of the public with regards to fly tipping and other items on land 
adjoining the above property.   
 
On inspection of the property the officer observed an accumulation of refuse and other 
items that the officer considered to be Anti-Social Behaviour.   
 
A Notice under the above act was served on the land owner, dated 20th January 2017, 
and subsequently a Fixed Penalty Notice was issued on 8th February 2017, after reminder 
letters the land remained with refuse and other items.  
 
No payment has been received by Hyndburn Borough Council, a successful prosecution 
was brought against the offender. The court ordered the perpetrator to carry out remedial 
work within 14 days and to pay the Councils legal costs. 

 
 
5.0 Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
5.1 The Council is using a wide range of powers to address environmental blight, including fly 

tipping.  We have a strong track in this area however, further intervention would require a 
significant increases in resources. 

 
6.0 Consultations 
 
6.1 Portfolio Holder 
  

Page 15



 

APPENDIX A 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 01 November 2018 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Paul Cox - Deputy Leader - Environmental 
Services 

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Riley – Head of Environmental Services 

TITLE OF REPORT: Fly Tipping, Littering and Graffiti in Hyndburn 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To update Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the latest 

developments of Fly Tipping, Littering and Graffiti in Hyndburn. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 The Committee note the updates within the report and makes comments. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Fly-tipping  

This is defined as the illegal deposit of waste on land, contrary to Section 33(1)(a) 
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. Local authorities and the Environment 
Agency both have a responsibility in respect of illegally deposited waste. This 
includes local authorities and the Environment Agency collecting and reporting the 
waste.  
 

3.1.1 Everyone who handles waste, including householders, has a 'duty of care' to do so 
responsibly. According to the Department for Environment Food and Rural Affairs 
(DEFRA), household waste, including leftover DIY material and abandoned 
electrical goods such as fridges, account for half of all fly-tipped rubbish in 
England. As well as uninformed householders, and a ‘man and van’ services, 
organised criminal gangs carry out fly-tipping and operate illegal waste disposal 
services for money. 

Page 16



 

 
3.1.2 DEFRA’s most recent statistics, (2016-17) estimates there were more than 1 

million incidents of fly-tipped waste, costing local Councils just under £60 million 
per annum to clear. The key points highlighted by DEFRA in their report are shown 
below: 

 

 Local authorities in England dealt with around 1 million, (1,002,000) fly-
tipping incidents, a 7% increase from the previous year. 

 Two thirds, (67%) of fly-tips involved household waste. Total incidents 
involving household waste increased by 8% from the previous year. 

 Consistent with previous years, the most common place for fly-tipping to 
occur was on the highway, which accounted for almost half, (49%) of total 
incidents. The number of highway incidents has increased by 4% from the 
previous year. 

 As in the last few years, the most common size category for fly-tipping 
incidents was a ‘small van’ load, (33% of total incidents) followed by a ‘car 
boot’ load, (27%). 

 The estimated cost of clearance for fly-tipping to local authorities in England 
was £57.7 million. 

 Local authorities carried out approx. 474,000 enforcement actions costing 
around £16 million, a decrease of approx. 20,000 actions and £0.9 million in 
cost from the previous year. 

 The number of fixed penalty notices issued increased by 56% to approx. 
56,000. This is now the second most common enforcement action 
 

3.1.3 The Council aims to remove fly-tipped waste from back streets on the day of the 
grey bin collection day. However, this timescale may be longer if: 

 

 The incident is being investigated by the Council’s enforcement team or the 
Environment Agency.   

 The waste is such a weight that it requires removing by mechanical means. 
This may mean a delay in its removal until the Council can hire in suitable 
machinery and provide sufficient work for the minimum daily hire rate. 

 The waste requires specialist trained personnel to collect and pre-book the 
waste into the appropriate licenced hazardous waste disposal facility. 

 
For waste fly-tipped on other open spaces / Council owned land, the Council aims 
to remove this within 10 working days. 

  
3.1.4 Reported number of incidents for fly-tipping for the period 1st September 2017 to 

31 August 2018 was 2,397, with the majority, 47% occurring on back streets. Of 
the waste, 51% was household/domestic type and almost 49% was a small van / 
transit van size load. Details of HBC’s percentage split between areas, waste 
types and quantities are provided in Appendix 1. 

 

Page 17



 

3.1.5 Previously, the Council had a number of dedicated collection crews to remove fly–
tipped waste from locations within the Borough. However, continued budget 
pressures and the drive for efficiencies have led to the removal of these resources, 
with the front-line domestic collection crews now collecting fly-tipped waste located 
within their daily collection round. There is one remaining mobile crew that clears 
waste outside of the normal collection crew’s routes but they are mainly 
responsible for clearing the main outer and inner gateway routes across the 
Borough. 

 
3.1.6 A project to provide a fully mobile platform for our Waste Services enforcement 

team went live in August 2018.  The ‘in-house’ designed system has streamlined 
the production of FPN’s, leading to a more efficient and effective enforcement 
process. 

 
3.2  Littering and Dog Fouling 
 
3.2.1 The Council has provided over 650 litter bins across the Borough and those 

located on hand sweeping routes are emptied as the hand sweeper goes past.  
The litter bins not on a hand sweeper’s route are emptied twice a week on Monday 
and Thursday by a mobile collection team. Litter bins in parks are emptied by staff 
in the park as required. 

 
3.2.2 There are almost 350 dog bins emptied once per week, either a Tuesday or Friday 

spread across the Borough. Dog bins in parks are emptied by staff in the park as 
required. The Council has made a commitment to continue providing dog bags 
free of charge for residents to pick-up and dispose of their dog’s waste. 

 
3.2.3 Following a review of the Council’s litter and dog fouling enforcement action, 

Cabinet requested officers submit a proposal to tackle the small minority of 
irresponsible residents whose actions blemish the local environment as the 
Council does not have sufficient resources in-house to undertake a major drive to 
tackle litter and dog fouling within the town centres, parks and open spaces.  

 
3.2.4 There are a limited number of environmental enforcement contractors within the 

industry and one of the market leaders, Kingdom Services Group, has undertaken 
successful pilots for Burnley Council, Blackburn with Darwen Council and other 
local authorities in the North West.   
 

3.2.5 At its meeting in July 2018, Cabinet gave approval for the Head of Environmental 
Services, in consultation with the Executive Director, (Legal & Democratic 
Services) to enter into a 12 month pilot agreement with Kingdom Services Group 
Limited. A further report as to the success of the pilot will be provided to Cabinet 
before any decision is taken as to the continuation of the litter and dog fouling 
enforcement programme. 

 

Page 18



 

3.2.6 The company will deliver specialist environmental enforcement action to 
Accrington Town Centre, and other high priority areas identified by Cabinet 
members. Cabinet has authorised their staff to issue ‘on the spot fines’ through the 
use of Fixed Penalty Notices, (FPN’s) for littering and dog fouling.  

 
3.2.7 Cabinet requested that the Council and Kingdom undertake a period of public 

education for 2 weeks prior to the first FPN’s being issued. This is to raise resident 
awareness of the need to dispose of litter responsibly and clean up after their dog. 

 
3.2.8 The pilot agreement is to enhance and not to replace the important work the 

Council’s Dog Warden or Waste Services Enforcement Officers already undertake. 
 
3.3 Graffiti / Fly-posting 
 
3.3.1 The Council’s policy is to try and remove all offensive graffiti or fly-posting within 

24 hours of it being reported to the Council from the next working day. Non 
offensive incidents are programmed as and when resources become available. 

 
3.3.2 The Council no longer has a dedicated jetting/power washing unit, so the hand 

lance, (jet washer) on the Council’s mechanical sweepers is used. If this is not 
suitable, dedicated high pressure units can be ‘hired in’. However, this may take a 
little longer depending upon their availability. 

 
3.3.2 There is no separate work ticket dedicated to graffiti complaints, as the number of 

reported incidents to the Council is very, very low. Officers cannot recall more than 
half a dozen or so a year and therefore there has been no drive to set up a 
separate work ticket.  

 
3.3.3 Whilst enforcement officers witness advertising banners/fly-posters on a daily 

basis, there is also no dedicated work ticket to monitor the number of complaints 
as again the number of reported complaints to the Council is very, very low. 
However, the Council has sought and received permission from the Highways 
Authority, (Lancashire County Council) for Hyndburn’s Waste Services 
Enforcement Officers to remove these on behalf of the County Council where 
permission for them to be erected has not been sought or granted from LCC. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 The Council does not have sufficient financial resources to employ enforcement 

officers dedicated to litter, dog fouling and graffiti, which is why it has entered into 
a 12 month pilot agreement with an external environmental enforcement 
contractor. 

 
4.2 There are 2 full time enforcement officers within Waste Services that investigate 

and issue FPN’s in relation to any waste related incidents. They work alongside 
the waste collection crews and other Council’s enforcement officers to reduce the 

Page 19



 

number of incidents of small fly-tipped waste / side waste on back streets and 
open spaces.  

 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1 Portfolio Holder  
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

N/A 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

N/A 

Assessment of risk 
 

N/A 

Equality and diversity 
implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached 
as an appendix to the report.  
 

N/A 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 The most recent fly-tipping statistics for England published by the Department for 

Environment Food and Rural Affairs, (DEFRA) is 2016/17 
 

https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/fly-tipping-in-england  
 
7.2  At the Cabinet meeting in October 2015, Cabinet approved the introduction of an 

Enforcement Policy for Waste Services Enforcement Officers. This policy gave 
approval for officers and enforcement contractors working on behalf of the Council 
a range of options which included FPN’s  
 
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=168&
Ver=4  

  
7.3 At its July 2018, meeting Cabinet gave approval for the Head of Environmental 

Services, in consultation with the Executive Director (Legal & Democratic 

Page 20

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/fly-tipping-in-england
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=168&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=168&Ver=4


 

Services), to enter into a 12 month pilot agreement with Kingdom Services Group 
Limited 

 
 https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2304

&Ver=4  
 
  

Page 21

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2304&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=133&MId=2304&Ver=4


 

Appendix 1 

Percentage split of fly tipping 
from 01/09/2017 to 31/08/2018 

  

 
 

  
 

 Waste Type % 

 Animal carcass 0 

 Asbestos 1 

 Black bags/Commercial 2 

 Black bags/Household 24 

 Chemical drums/Oil/Fuel 0 

 Clinical 0 

 Construction/Demolition/Excavation 11 

 Gas bottles 0 

 Other (Unidentified) 21 

 Other commercial waste 4 

 Other electrical 1 

 Other household waste 27 

 Tyres 1 

 Vehicle parts 7 

 White goods 1 

     

  
 

 Land Type % 

 Agricultural 0.5 

 Back Alleyway 47 

 Commercial/Industrial 0.5 

 Council Land 8 

 Footpath/Bridleway 6 

 Front Street 14 

 Highway 8 

 Other (Unidentified) 15 

 Private/Residential 0.5 

 Watercourse/Bank 0.5 

 

  
 

 SizeType % 

 Car boot load or less 15 

 Item size 17 

 Significant/Multiple loads 3 

 Single black bag 2 

 Single other item 12 

 Small van load 31 

 Tipper lorry load 3 

 Transit van load 17 

 

Page 22



 

Appendix B 
 
 
Table 1 Number of complaints for each Categories of requests for service for previous 
four years 
 
 

*Incidents of fly tipping are often recorded as “Land/Buildings Detrimental to Amenity” 
 
 
Graph 1 Number of complaints for each Categories of requests for service for previous 
four years 
 
 

 
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

P01 P06 P13 P16 P21 JA1 JA2 PO7

Type of site/year 

16_17 17_18 18_19 19_20

 Type of Site\Year 
16_17 17_18 18_19 19_20 

PO1 Accumulations of Refuse 32 21 25 27 

P06 Side Waste 2 1 0            3 

P13 Fly Tipping* 3 3 3            5 

P16 Dirty Back Yard (Unoccupied) 69 64 63           71 

P21 Dirty Back Yard (Occupied) 329 344 346          339 

JA1 Land/Buildings Detrimental to  
Amenity of the Community 

87 105 75            82 

JA2 Empty Dwellings detrimental to  
the Amenity of the Community 

31 22 44           36 

 
PO7 Illegal Encampments 18 18 11 

 

10 

 Total 571 578 567          573 

Page 23



 

Table 2 Notices served i.e. Action Taken 
 

 16_17 17_18 18_19 19_20 

S80 18 18 12 22 

S215 39 18 12 6 

S59 13 12 15 4 

S4 2 1 2 1 

S43 3 25 150 13 

S29 11 5 0 2 

Total 86 79 191 48 

 
 
Section 80 Building Act 1984 
S215 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
S 59 Environmental Protection Act 1990 
S4 Prevention of Damage by Pests 1949 
S43 Graffiti Fly Posting 

 
 
 
 
Graph 2 Number of Notices served i.e. Action Taken 
 

 
 
 
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

s80 S215 S59 S4 S43 S29 Total

16_17

17_18

18_19

19_20

Page 24



(England and Wales)

Company number: 09021597

Charity number: 1158857

Hyndburn Arts Limited

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Report of the Directors and Unaudited Financial Statements

Page 25

Agenda Item 4.



For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hyndburn Arts Limited

Contents Page

1 to 2Report of the Directors

3Independent Examiner's Report to the Directors

4Statement of Financial Activities

5Statement of Financial Position

6 to 10Notes to the Financial Statements

11Detailed Statement of Financial Activities

Page 26



For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hyndburn Arts Limited

Report of the Directors

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their report and the financial statements for the charitable company for the year ended 31 

March 2019. The Directors have adopted the provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended 

Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 

the Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015).

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objectives and aims

The directors have considered the Charity Commision's guidance on public benefit, including the guidance 'public benefit: running a 

charity (PB2)'.

REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE INFORMATION

Hyndburn Arts LimitedName of Charity

Charity registration number 1158857

09021597Company registration number

The Civic Union RoadPrincipal address

Oswaldtwistle

Accrington

Lancs

BB5 3HZ

Directors

The directors of the charitable company are its trustees for the purpose of charity law.  The trustees and officers serving during the 

year and since the year end were as follows:

Judith Helen Addison

(Appointed: 01 May 2014)

Margaret Allen

Heather Ann Ashton

Cherie Deakin

(Appointed: 01 May 2014)

(Resigned: 01 April 2017)

Clare Highton

William Highton

Gayle Knight

Derek Partlin

(Resigned: 31 March 2019)

Caterine Mary Hill

Donna Maria Lawrenson

Megan Taylor-Fleming

Gayle KnightSecretary

Bennett & CoIndependent examiners

Spring House, 194-196 Union Road

Oswaldtwistle

Accrington

Lancs

BB5 3EG

1 of 11
Page 27



For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hyndburn Arts Limited

Report of the Directors Continued

.............................................................................   

Approved by the Management Committee and signed on its behalf by

03 December 2019

2 of 11
Page 28



For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hyndburn Arts Limited

Independent Examiners Report to the Directors

I report to the trustees on my examination of the accounts of the charitable company for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Responsibilities and basis of report

As the charity Directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 

2006 ('the 2006 Act').

Having satisfied myself that the accounts of the Company are not required to be audited under Part 16 of the 2006 Act and are eligible 

for independent examination, I report in respect of my examination of your charity's accounts carried out under section 145 of the 

Charities Act 2011 ('the 2011 Act').  In carrying out my examination I have followed the Directions given by the Charity Commission 

under section 145(5)(b) of the 2011 Act.

Independent examiners statement

Since the Charitable company’s gross income exceeded £250,000, your examiner must be a member of a body listed in section 145 of 

the 2011 Act.  I confirm that I am qualified to undertake the examination by virtue of my membership of , which is one of the listed 

bodies.

I have completed my examination.  I confirm that no matters have come to my attention in connection with the examination giving me 

cause to believe that in any material respect:

1. accounting records were not kept in respect of the Company as required by section 386 of the 2006 Act; or

2. the accounts do not accord with those records; or

3. the accounts do not comply with the requirements of section 396 of the 2006 Act other than any requirement that the accounts give 

a 'true and fair view' which is not a matter considered as part of an independent examination; or

4. the accounts have not been prepared in accordance with the methods and principles of the Statement of Recommended Practice 

for accounting and reporting by charities applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting 

Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102).

I have no concerns and have come across no other matters in connection with the examination to which attention should be drawn in 

this report in order to enable a proper understanding of the accounts to be reached.

Bennett & Co

FAIA

Graham Bennett

Spring House, 194-196 Union Road

Oswaldtwistle

Accrington

Lancs

BB5 3EG

03 December 2019

3 of 11
Page 29



For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hyndburn Arts Limited

Statement of Financial Activities (including Income and Expenditure Account)

2018Unrestricted 

funds

Notes

££

Income and endowments from:

Donations and legacies  79,273  72,022  2 

Other trading activites  220,947  209,899  3 

Total  300,220  281,921 

Expenditure on:

Raising funds 4

(257,029)(278,381)Fundraising trading: cost of goods 

sold and other costs

Charitable activities 5/6

(37,042)(35,138)Support activities to performing 

arts in the community

Total (313,519) (294,071)

(13,299) (12,150)Net expenditure 

Reconciliation of funds

Total funds brought forward  26,024  13,875 

Total funds carried forward  576  13,874 

4 of 11
Page 30



As at 31 March 2019

Hyndburn Arts Limited

Statement of Financial Position

Registered Number : 09021597

£ £

Notes 2019 2018

Fixed assets

Tangible assets  5,135  1,827  11 

 5,135  1,827 

Current assets

 10,390  18,265  12 Debtors

Cash at bank and in hand  8,379  12,278 

 18,769  30,543 

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year (23,328) (18,496) 13 

Net current assets (4,559)  12,047 

Total assets less current liabilities  576  13,874 

Net assets  576  13,874 

The funds of the charity

Unrestricted income funds  14  576  13,874 

Total funds  576  13,874 

For the year ended 31 March 2019 the company was entitled to exemption from audit under section 477 of the Companies Act 2006 

relating to small companies.

- The members have not required the company to obtain an audit of its accounts for the year in question in accordance with section 

476,

- The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for complying with the requirements of the Act with respect to accounting records 

and the preparation of accounts. These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions applicable to companies 

subject to the small companies’ regime.

The financial statement were approved and authorised for issue by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

03 December 2019

Judith Helen Addison

Director

5 of 11
Page 31



For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hyndburn Arts Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for investments which are included at 

market value and the revaluation of certain fixed assets and in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) ‘Accounting and 

Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with 

the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015)’, Financial 

Reporting Standard 102 the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), and the 

Companies Act 2006.

Hyndburn Arts Limited meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.  Assets and liabilities are initially recognised at 

historical cost or transaction value unless otherwise stated in the relevant accounting policy note(s).

Going concern

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets, other than freehold land, are stated at cost or valuation less depreciation and any provision for impairment. 

Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation of fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, 

over their expected useful lives on the following basis:

20% Reducing balanceOffice Equipment

30% Reducing balanceComputer Equipment

2. Income from donations and legacies

20182019

£ £

Unrestricted funds

Donations received  11,192  6,234 

Grants received  60,830  73,039 

 72,022  79,273 

3. Income earned from other activities

20182019

£ £

Unrestricted funds

Shop income  33,929  36,870 

 45,244  46,396 Room Hires

 130,726  137,681 Theatre Ticket Sales

 209,899  220,947 

6 of 11
Page 32



For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hyndburn Arts Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

4. Expenditure on other trading activities

20182019

£ £

Unrestricted funds

 101,675  119,368 Fund raising events

Shop costs  17,628  18,295 

Support costs  137,726  140,718 

 278,381  257,029 

5. Costs of charitable activities by fund type

20182019

£ £

Unrestricted funds

 37,042  35,138 Support costs

6. Costs of charitable activities by activity type

20182019

£ £

Support activities to performing 

arts in the community

 35,138  37,042 

7. Analysis of support costs

20182019

£ £

Management Staff Costs  140,718  137,726 

Governance costs  35,138  37,042 

 174,768  175,856 

7 of 11
Page 33



For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hyndburn Arts Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

8. Net income/(expenditure) for the year

This is stated after charging/(crediting):

2019 2018

£ £

Depreciation of owned fixed assets  1,432  670 

Accountancy fees  2,369  2,128 

Trustees' remuneration  27,690  28,473 

9. Staff costs

Total staff costs for the year ended 31 March 2019 were:

2019 2018

£ £

Salaries and wages  133,069  128,873 

Social security costs  5,433  5,778 

 138,502  134,650 

10. Comparative for the Statement of Financial Activities

The comparative year values on the Statement of Financial Activites are for unrestricted funds.

11. Tangible fixed assets

Computer 

equipment

Computer 

Equipment TotalCost or valuation

£ £ £

 4,208  2,738  1,470 At 01 April 2018

 4,740  -  4,740 Additions

At 31 March 2019  6,210  2,738  8,948 

Depreciation

 2,381  1,538  843 At 01 April 2018

Charge for year  1,432  360  1,072 

 3,813  1,898  1,915 At 31 March 2019

Net book values

At 31 March 2019

At 31 March 2018

 4,295 

 627 

 840 

 1,200 

 5,135 

 1,827 

8 of 11
Page 34



For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hyndburn Arts Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

12. Debtors

2019 2018

£ £

Amounts due within one year:

Trade debtors  10,390  18,265 

 10,390  18,265 

13. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2019 2018

£ £

Trade creditors  7,893  7,675 

Other creditors  14,001  9,421 

Accruals and deferred income  1,434  1,400 

 23,328  18,496 

14. Movement in funds

Unrestricted Funds

Balance at 

01/04/2018

Incoming 

resources

Outgoing 

resources

Balance at 

31/03/2019

££££

General

 13,875  300,220 (313,519)  576 General

 13,875  300,220 (313,519)  576 

Unrestricted Funds - Previous year

Balance at 

01/04/2017

Incoming 

resources

Outgoing 

resources

Balance at 

31/03/2018

££££

General

 26,024  281,921 (294,071)  13,874 General

 26,024  281,921 (294,071)  13,874 

Purpose of unrestricted Funds

General

Support activities to performing arts in the community

9 of 11
Page 35



For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hyndburn Arts Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements Continued

Purpose of restricted funds

Project Funding

Support of Performing Arts in the Community

15. Analysis of net assets between funds

Tangible fixed 

assets

Net current 

assets / 

(liabilities)

Net Assets

£ £ £

Unrestricted funds

General

 5,135 (4,559)  576 General

 5,135 (4,559)  576 

Previous year

Tangible fixed 

assets

Net current 

assets / 

(liabilities)

Net Assets

£ £ £

Unrestricted funds

General

 1,827  12,047  13,874 General

 1,827  12,047  13,874 

10 of 11
Page 36



For the year ended 31 March 2019

Hyndburn Arts Limited

Detailed Statement of Financial Activities

££

20182019

INCOME AND ENDOWMENT

Donations and legacies

 6,234  11,192 Donations

 73,039  60,830 Grants receivable

 79,273  72,022 

Other trading activities

 36,870  33,929 Bar Sales

 46,396  45,244 Income from Room Hires

 137,681  130,726 Income from Theatre Ticket Sales

 220,947  209,899 

Total incoming resources  300,220  281,921 

EXPENDITURE

Other trading activities

(119,368) (101,675)Fund raising events

(18,295) (17,628)Bar Purchases

(137,663) (119,303)

SUPPORT COSTS

Management

(140,718) (137,726)Fundraising Management

(140,718) (137,726)

Governance costs

(35,138) (37,042)Governance costs

(35,138) (37,042)

Total resources expended (313,519) (294,071)

Net Expenditure (13,299) (12,150)

11 of 11

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of Last Meeting
	Minutes

	3. Enforcement around Fly Tipping, Littering and Graffiti in Hyndburn
	4. Hyndburn Arts Trust
	Budget for 2020-2021


